
Page 1 of 2 
 

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA 

Thursday, November 14, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. held 
Virtually https://video.businessconnect.telus.com/join/501792590 (Meeting ID # 501792590) and 

Physically in Smoky Lake County Council Chambers, 4612 McDougall Drive, Smoky Lake 
************************************************************************************************************************** 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Adoption of Agenda 

 
3. Adoption of Minutes 

3.1. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting, Thursday, October 10, 2024 
 

4. Delegation(s) 
4.1. Darrell Ewaskiw, Representing Bonnie Lake Resort Community, to request support in upgrading 

amenities @ 9:15 a.m. 
4.2. Village of Waskatenau Council, to request reconsideration of consent to purchase 19.62 +/- acres 

of land within Smoky Lake County @ 1:00 p.m.  
 

5. Public Hearing  
Nil 

 
6. Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)  

Nil 
 
PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD - announced between 11:30 a.m. & 12:00 p.m. 
 
7. Business – Requests for Decisions 

7.1. Remembrance Day Ceremonies 
7.2. Backsloping Applications 
7.3. Policy Statement No. 09-39-13: Dust Control 
7.4. Intermunicipal Subdivision Development Appeal Board Membership 
7.5. Policy Statement No. 01-22-01 Policy Committee Terms of Reference 
7.6. Policy Statement No. 08-13-01 Disposal of Assets 
7.7. Remuneration for Public-at-Large 
7.8. Renew Assessment Review Board Services Contract 
7.9. Bylaw 1464-24: Non-Residential Tax Incentive  
7.10. Retuning Officer for Municipal Election 2025 
7.11. 40th Annual RMRF Central Municipal Law Seminar 
7.12. Recreational Are Facility Supervision and Cleaning Services – Request for Proposal 

 
8. Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Report 

8.1. CAO Report (handout) 
 

9. Council Committee Reports 
9.1. Councillor Division One Report (handout) 
9.2. Councillor Division Two Report (handout) 
9.3. Councillor Division Three & Deputy Reeve Report (handout) 

patti
Typewritten Text



Smoky Lake County Council Agenda 
November 14, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

9.4. Councillor Division Four Report (handout)  
9.5. Councillor Division Five & Reeve’s Report  

  
10. Correspondence  

10.1. From Village of Waskatenau, listing their Organizational Meeting appointments for 2024-2025. 
10.2. From Village of Vilna, listing their Organizational Meeting appointments for 2024-2025. 
10.3. From Wheatland County, dated November 1, 2024, invitation to join collaborative stance on 

FCM Conference attendance. 
10.4. From Alberta Association of Community Peace Officers, dated September 25, 2024, invitation 

to attend a closed information session. 
10.5. From S/Sgt. Michael Jaszczyszyn, Eastern Alberta District Advisory NCO, RCMP, and Sgt. 

Anita Doktor, Detachment Commander of Smoky Lake RCMP, extending an invitation for 
community leaders to visit Real Time Operations Center in Edmonton. 

10.6. From Minister of Transportation and Economic Corridors, dated October 29, 2024, responding 
the County’s concerns in respect to vegetation control on provincial highways. 

 
11. Information Release  

11.1. Information Released to Council from September 3, 2024 to November 8, 2024 
 

12. Financial Reports 
12.1. Financial Statement for the Month of September, 2024 
12.2. Budget to Actual Report as at November 6, 2024 
12.3. Bills & Accounts as of November 14, 2024 
 

13. Next Meetings 
13.1. Schedule a Council Committee of the Whole Meeting with RCMP CO Delegation, for December 

4, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 
13.2. Reconfirm Smoky Lake County Council’s scheduled upcoming Meetings are as follows: 

Thursday, December 12, 2024, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
13.3. Scheduled Smoky Lake County Council next Meetings for: 

Thursday, January 9, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
Thursday, January 23, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
Thursday, February 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
Thursday, February 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
Thursday, March 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 
Thursday, March 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., (Regular) 

 
14. In Camera (Executive Session) 

14.1. FOIP Act Section 27: Privileged Information, in respect to Duty Risk Assessment & Mitigation 
Report for Community Peace Officers 
 

15. Adjournment. 



County Council Meeting          15762  
October 10, 2024 

 SMOKY LAKE COUNTY 
 

Minutes of the County Council Meeting held on Thursday, October 10, 
2024, at 9:00 A.M. held both virtually online and physically in Council 
Chambers. 

The meeting was called to order by the Reeve, Jered Serben, in the presence 
of the following persons: 
 

   ATTENDANCE 
 Div. No. Councillor(s) Thursday, Oct. 10, 2024 
 1 Dan Gawalko Present in Chambers 
 2 Linda Fenerty Present in Chambers 
 3 Dominique Céré Present in Chambers 

 4 Lorne Halisky Present in Chambers 
 5 Jered Serben Present in Chambers 
 Finance Manager Brenda Adamson Present in Chambers 
 Municipal Clerk / R.S. Meaghan Andreychuk Present in Chambers 
 Executive Svcs Patti Priest Absent 
    
 ********************************************************* 
  
 Observers in Attendance Upon Call to Order: 
 Plan. & Dev. Manager  Jordan Ruegg Virtually Present 
 Natural Gas Manager  Daniel Moric Present in Chambers 
 Public Works Manager Chris Minailo Present in Chambers 
 Ag. Fieldman Carleigh Danyluk Present in Chambers 
 Public 3 Members Virtually Present 
 Media No Members N/A 

    
    
    
 2. Agenda:  

 
884-24: Serben That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting Agenda for Thursday, 

October 10, 2024, be adopted, as amended:  
 

Addition to the Agenda: 
1. Letter of Support for Métis Crossing’s Application to the Green and 

Inclusive Community Buildings (GICB) Program.  
2. Certificate of Recognition: Year-2024 Ministers Awards for 

Municipal and Public Library Excellence.  
3. Executive Session: Legal Issue in respect to the MCC For Smoky 

Lake Development Corp. under the authority of the FOIP Act 
Section 16: Third Party Business. 

Carried Unanimously. 
 
 

 3.  Minutes: 
 

3.1. Council Regular Meeting Minutes of September 26, 2024 
885-24: Halisky That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting, held on 

Thursday September 26, 2024, be adopted as presented.  
Carried. 

 
3.2. Council Special Meeting Minutes of October 1, 2024 
886-24: Gawalko That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Council Special Meeting, 

held on Tuesday, October 1st, 2024, be adopted as presented.  
Carried. 

 
 
 

patti
Typewritten Text
#3.1



County Council Meeting          15763  
October 10, 2024 

 7. Request for Decision: 
 

7.1. Alberta Invasive Species Council Sponsorship 
887-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council approve to purchase a Year-2025 Bronze 

Membership in the amount of $1,000.00 to Alberta Invasive Species, for the 
benefit of: 

- Access to over 150 invasive species factsheets, 
- Access to quarterly electronic newsletters, 
- Free use of the EDDMapS, EDDMapS Pro, and ISM Track apps and 

data downloads [for reporting invasive species], 
- Opportunity to participate in working groups, events, or contribute 

articles to newsletters,  
- Recognition on the AISC website,  
- Recognition in our quarterly newsletter,  
- Recognition at AISC's Annual Conference,  
- Exclusive access to the AISC's Newsletter Archive,  
- Annual AISC Memberships (includes 2 votes at the AGM), 
- Member rate for the AISC Conference Registration for 2, and 
- Member rate prices on select items on the AISC's online store for 2, 

As per the correspondence received from Paige Kuczmarski, Invasive 
Species Technician, Alberta Invasive Species Council, dated September 19, 
2024. 

Carried. 
 

7.2. Waskatenau Creek Corridor Restoration and Trail Concept 
888-24: Halisky That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the “Waskatenau Creek 

restoration and trail concept” report, dated August 2, 2024, prepared by O2 
Planning and Design, resulting from the grant funded study through the 2023 
Alberta Community Partnership (ACP) program application managed by the 
Village of Waskatenau in partnership with the County; and utilize the 
information as a resource if any grant funding applications are submitted to 
any programs for any Waskatenau creek area development. 

Carried. 
 
 

  Executive Session: 
 

Legal Issue: County-Owned Lands – Offers to Purchase from Adjacent Landowners 
889-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Planning and 
Development Manager, and Municipal Clerk, to discuss County-Owned 
Land offers to purchase from adjacent land-owners, under the authority of 
the FOIP Act, Section 27: Privileged Information and Section 16: Third Party 
Business Interests, time 9:11 a.m.   

Carried. 
 

890-24- Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, Time 9:32 
a.m. 

Carried. 
 

Rescind August 8, 2024, Motion #761-24 – County-Owned Lands 
891-24- Céré That Smoky Lake County Council rescind the August 8, 2024, Motion # 761-

24 as the second portion of the said motion in respect to the option of selling 
properties not sold to adjacent landowners at an unreserved bid auction 
through Richie Bros. Ltd., is no longer Council’s direction; and 
acknowledge all adjacent landowners of the County-Owned Lands listed 
under the said motion, have already been contacted and have already 
determine they were (or were not) interested in purchasing the said lands 
adjacent to their property as per the first portion of the said motion. 
 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15764  
October 10, 2024 

 7. Request for Decision: 
 

7.3. County-Owned Lands – Offers to Purchase from Adjacent Landowners 
892-24: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 

of $4,500.00, from adjacent landowners: Victor, James, Taras and Anthony 
Filewich, to purchase County-Owned lands legally described as PT. NW-2-
59-12-W4M (Roll #12590230) containing +/- 13.57 acres. 

Carried. 
 

893-24: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council reject the offer received in the amount of 
$2,000.00, from adjacent landowner: Casey Tchir, to purchase County-
Owned lands legally described as PT. NE-29-59-12-W4M (Roll #12592941) 
containing +/- 2.02 acres, due to the conditions of sale proposed by Mr. 
Tchir. 

Carried. 
 
 

 Councillor Fenerty declared pecuniary interest and abstained from voting on 
any question relating to the offer received from Terry Sklerek, as he is her 
partner. 
 
 

894-24: Gawalko 
 

That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $1,000.00, from adjacent landowner: Terry Sklerek, to purchase County-
Owned lands legally described as PT. SW-21-60-13-W4M (Roll#13602121) 
containing +/- 1.0 acres. 

Carried. 
 

895-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $500.00, from adjacent landowners: Lawrence & Janet Lavoie, to 
purchase County-Owned lands legally described as PT. SW-35-59-15-W4M 
(Roll#15593521) containing +/- 0.5 acres. 

Carried. 
 
 

896-24: Gawalko 
 
 

That Smoky Lake County Council reject the offer received in the amount of 
$375.00, from adjacent landowner: Stephanie Popel, to purchase County-
Owned lands legally described as PT. NE-27-58-16-W4M (Roll #16582740) 
containing +/- 2.56 acres. 
 

Councilor Céré requested a record vote. 
In Favour:  Opposed: 
Gawalko  Serben 
Halisky  Céré 
Fenerty 

Carried. 
 

897-24: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $40,000.00, from adjacent landowners: Jim & Sylvia Masikewich, to 
purchase County-Owned lands legally described as PLAN 8120163, LOT 1 
(Roll#16593341) containing +/- 20.16 acres. 

Carried. 
 

898-24: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council reject the offer received in the amount of 
$25,000.00, from adjacent crownland lease holder: Clear Hills Community 
Grazing Association, as represented by Ryan Franchuk, President of Clear 
Hills Grazing Association, to purchase County-Owned lands legally 
described as SW-12-61-16-W4M (Roll #16611220) containing +/- 160.0 
acres. 

Carried. 
 
 



County Council Meeting          15765  
October 10, 2024 

899-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council reject the offer received in the amount of 
$1.00, from adjacent landowner: Lloyd Pirzek, to purchase County-Owned 
lands legally described as PLAN 3329ET (Roll #18591021) containing +/- 
1.0 acres. 

Carried. 
 

900-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $1,600.00, from adjacent landowner: Laura Bertin, to purchase County-
Owned lands legally described as PLAN 1955CL, BLOCK 1, LOT 3 (Roll 
#22010103) containing +/- 3,900 square feet. 

Carried. 
 

901-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $1,800.00, from adjacent landowner: Vince Sutherland, to purchase 
County-Owned lands legally described as PLAN 1039CL, BLOCK 4, LOTS 
12-14 (Roll #27150412) containing +/- 13,660 square feet. 

Carried. 
 

902-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $1,200.00, from adjacent landowner: Vince Sutherland, to purchase 
County-Owned lands legally described as PLAN 1039CL, BLOCK 4, LOTS 
15-16 (Roll #27150415) containing +/- 12,785 square feet.  

Carried. 
 

903-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council accept the offer received in the amount 
of $5,000.00, from adjacent landowner: Michael Thompson, to purchase 
County-Owned lands legally described as PLAN 0425044, BLOCK H, LOT 
11A (Roll #40451211) containing +/- 10,000 square feet. 

Carried. 
 

 Daniel Moric, Natural Gas Manager entered Council Chambers, time 9:31 
a.m. 
 

 Daniel Moric, Natural Gas Manager left Council Chambers, time 9:41 a.m. 
 
 

  Executive Session: 
 

Legal Issue: Village of Waskatenau’s Request to Purchase Land 
904-24- Halisky  That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Planning and 
Development Manager, and Municipal Clerk, to discuss a Legal Issue, in 
respect to the Village of Waskatenau’s Request to Purchase Land, under the 
authority of the FOIP Act, Section 27: Privileged Information and Section 
16: Third Party Business Interests, time 9:41 a.m. 

 Carried. 
 

905-24- Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 10:09 
a.m. 

Carried. 
 

7.4. Village of Waskatenau – Request to Purchase Land 
906-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council deny consent to the Village of 

Waskatenau, to acquire the lands legally described as: “Railway Plan 371BV 
Station Grounds in Township 59, Range 19, West of the 4th Meridian, 
comprising parts of Section NE 8 (4.44 hectares) and NW 9 (2.55 hectares), 
expecting thereout all the mines and minerals; in response to the letter 
received from the Village of Waskatenau, dated July 22, 2024, requesting 
acquisition of the said lands located outside their municipal boundary. 
 

  Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15766  
October 10, 2024 

7.5. Spedden Hall & Church – Request to Waive Natural Gas Service Charge 
907-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council take no action to thereby denying the 

request to waive the Natural Gas Service Charge for Smoky Lake County 
Natural Gas Accounts 110050.01 & 110110.01, as per the letter received 
from the Treasurer of the Ukrainian Orthodox Society of Spedden, dated 
September 23, 2024. 

 Carried. 
 

7.6. FCSS Grant Application – Smoky Lake Minor Hockey 
908-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council approve to allocate funding from the 2024 

Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Grant budget in 
accordance with Policy No. 08-17-01 Family and Community Support 
Services (FCSS) grant as follows:  
Community Group Eligibility Funding 
Smoky Lake Minor 
Hockey Association 

Volunteers Respect in Sport 
Leader Courses 

$2,500.00 

 
Carried. 

 
7.7. Tax Agreement for Property Tax Roll #15591611 
909-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County execute a Tax Agreement for Property Tax Roll 

Number 15591611, legally described as Plan 1325199 Block 1, Lot 1, with 
a total monthly payment in the amount of $1,285.00 per month, effective 
October 15, 2024, for thirty-six (36) consecutive months, in accordance with 
Policy Statement No. 12-01-02: Tax Agreement. 

Carried. 
 

7.8. Smoky Lake Curling Club – Accounts Receivable Penalties 
910-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge receipt of the financial 

information provided by the Smoky Lake Curling Club in response to 
Council’s September 26, 2024, Motion #867-24; and approve to write-off 
the interest accrued in the amount of $1,039.72, on the Club’s Accounts 
Receivable account #SMOK028; and direct Administration to write a letter 
informing the Club of future payment deadlines. 

Carried. 
 

 8. Chief Administrative Officer’s Report: 
 

8.1. Action List from September 12 & 26, 2024 Council Meetings 
911-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council Meeting Action List from the Council 

Meeting held on September 12, 2024 and September 26, 2024, be accepted 
for information. 
                                                                                                            Carried. 

 
 10.    Correspondence: 

 
10.1. Minister of Municipal Affairs – Carbon Tax Survey  
912-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County share data relating to the impact of the carbon tax 

on the County’s operations (both directly and indirectly), with the Minister 
of Municipal Affairs, through an online survey, as requested in the letter 
received from the Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated October 2, 2024. 
 

Carried. 
 

10.2. MLA Bonnyville-Cold Lake-St. Paul - Distribution of Charitable Gaming Revenues 
913-24: Gawalko 
 
 

That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the copied letter from 
Scott Cyr, MLA Bonnyville-Cold Lake-St. Paul Constituency, to the City of 
Edmonton Mayor, dated August 23, 2024, in respect to requesting support 
from the City of Edmonton to advocate for a fairer distribution of charitable 
gaming revenues through the Alberta Gaming, Liquor & Cannabis (AGLC). 
 

Carried. 



County Council Meeting          15767  
October 10, 2024 

914-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council write a letter of support to the local MLA, 
Rural Municipalities Association and Alberta Gaming, Liquor & Cannabis 
(AGLC) advocating for a fairer distribution of charitable gaming revenues, 
and requests a deadline for action on the letter by November 1, 2024; in 
response to the copied letter received from Scott Cyr, MLA Bonnyville-Cold 
Lake-St. Paul Constituency, to the City of Edmonton Mayor, dated August 
23, 2024, requesting support from the City of Edmonton of same.  
 

Carried. 
 

10.3. Smoky Lake Regional Heritage Board - Municipal Historic Resources 
915-24: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge receipt of the letter 

received from the Smoky Lake Regional Heritage Board, dated September 
27, 2024, recommending the following three buildings described below, to 
be assigned Municipal Historic Resource designation; and Council approve 
to provide each respective building owner with a Notice of Intent to 
Designate as a Municipal Historic Resource, pursuant to the Historical 
Resources Act, in accordance with Policy Statement No. 61-15-01: 
Designation of Municipal Historic Resources: 

1. Bellis Store and Heritage Shoppe, built in 1945, on the lands legally 
described as Plan 0728767, Block 2, Lot 10A; 

2. White Earth Hall, built in 1919, on the lands legally described as 
part of SE-16-60-17-W4; and 

3. Samuel A. MacDonald Stopping House, General Store and Pine 
Creek Post Office, dates back to 1908, on the lands legally described 
as part of SW-35-58-19-W4. 

Carried. 
 

 Addition to the Agenda: 
 

Métis Crossing’s Application to the Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program 
916-24-Halisky 
 

That’s Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the verbal request 
presented by the Planning and Development Manager, for a letter of support 
of towards Métis Crossing Year-2024 application to the Green and Inclusive 
Community Buildings funding program. 

Carried. 
 

917-24- Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council approve to provide a letter of support for 
Métis Crossing’s Year-2024 application to the Green and Inclusive 
Community Buildings funding program. 

Carried. 
 

2024 Minister’s Award for Municipal and Public Library Excellence 
918-24- Céré That Smoky Lake County acknowledge and accept the Year-2024 Minister’s 

Award for Municipal and Public Library Excellence, awarded to Smoky 
Lake County for the North Saskatchewan Canadian Heritage River Initiative. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Carried.  
 



County Council Meeting          15768  
October 10, 2024 

 11.    Information Releases: 
 
 Nil 

 
 12.   Financial Reports: 

 
 Nil 

 
 13.  Next Meeting(s): 

 
Next & Scheduled County Council Meetings 
919-24: Halisky That the next Smoky Lake County Council Meetings be re-confirmed and 

scheduled as follows: 
Thursday, October 24, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular and Organization 
Council Meeting) 
Thursday, October 29, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. (Budget Council Meeting) 
Thursday, November 14, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular Council Meeting) 
Thursday, December 12, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular Council Meeting) 

to be held virtually, through Electronic Communication Technology as per 
Bylaw 1376-20 and/or physically in County Council Chambers. 
 

Carried. 
 

Schedule County Council Meeting for the Purpose of CAO Evaluation 
920-24: Serben That the next Smoky Lake County Council Meetings for the Purpose of  

CAO Evaluation, be scheduled for Tuesday, November 19, 2024, at 9:00 
a.m. to be held in County Council Chambers. 

Carried. 
 

 14. Executive Session: 
 

14.1 Legal Issue: Surface Material Leases 
 921-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Public 
Works Manager, and Municipal Clerk, to discuss a Legal Issue, in respect to 
Surface Material Leases, under the authority of the FOIP Act, Section 27: 
Privileged Information and Section 16: Third Party Business Interests, time 
11:07 a.m. 

Carried. 
 

922-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 11:30 
a.m. 

Carried. 
 

11:30 to 11:35 
a.m. 

Public Question and Answer Period: 
 
Kyle Schole, member of the public, expressed the importances of the 
Waskatenau Creek Corridor Restoration and Trail Concept and 
congratulated Council on the North Saskatchewan Canadian Heritage River 
Initiative, without a question. 

 
 14. Executive Session: 

 
14.1 Legal Issue: Surface Material Leases (continued) 
923-24: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Public 
Works Manager, and Municipal Clerk, to discuss a Legal Issue, in respect to 
Surface Material Leases, under the authority of the FOIP Act, Section 27: 
Privileged Information and Section 16: Third Party Business Interests, time 
11:35 a.m. 

Carried.  
 



County Council Meeting          15769  
October 10, 2024 

924-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 12:05 
p.m. 

Carried.  
 

Surface Material Leases: SML No. 140092 and SML No. 120101 
925-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council authorize Administration to transact the 

following purchase and approve an unbudgeted expense in the amount of 
Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,200,000.00) plus GST, 
funded from the Year-2024 Lands Sales and Reserves, to purchase two 
limited companies with Surface Material Leases (SML) inclusive, described 
as: SML No. 140092, at SW-22-61-18-W4 containing 78.79 Acres, under 
2430603 Alberta Ltd., and SML No. 120101, at SW-22-61-18-W4 
containing 79.91 Acres, under 2450652 Alberta Ltd, Pending all legal 
conditions are met. 

Carried.  
 

14.2.  Personnel Issue: Update on Staff from the CAO under the authority  
926-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council and Chief Administrative Officer, to discuss a Personnel Issue, 
in respect to an update on Staff from the CAO under the authority of the 
FOIP Act, Section 27: Privileged Information and Section 17: Third Party 
Personal Privacy, time 12:19 p.m. 

Carried. 
 

927-24: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 12:54 
p.m. 

 Carried. 
 

 Addition to the Agenda (Executive Session):   
 

Legal Issue: Update on the MCC for Smoky Lake Development Corp.  
928-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session, in the presence 

of all Council and Chief Administrative Officer, to discuss a Legal Issue, in 
respect to an update on the MCC for Smoky Lake Development Corp., under 
the authority of the FOIP Act, Section 27: Privileged Information and 
Section 16: Third Party Business Interests, time 12:55 p.m. 

Carried. 
 

929-24: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 1:31 
p.m. 

 Carried. 
 

930-24: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council direct the Chief Administrative Officer 
to obtain a legal opinion pertaining to the MCC for Smoky Lake 
Development Corp., as discussed on October 10, 2024, in Executive Session, 
under the authority of the FOIP Act, Section 27: Privileged Information and 
Section 16: Third Party Business Interests. 

Carried.  
 

 15.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

931-24: Serben That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting of October 10, 2024, be 
adjourned, time 1:32 p.m. 

Carried. 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
   REEVE 

  
 S E A L 

  ________________________________ 
 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



October 21, 2024 

To: Smoky Lake County 

From: Darrell Ewaskiw, 

On Behalf Of: Bonne Lake Resort Community 

Subject: Request for Support in Upgrading Amenities 

Dear Smoky Lake County Council, 

I am writing as the lead representative of the Bonne Lake Resort Community to request your 

consideration for support in upgrading four key resort amenities during your upcoming budget 

meetings. 

1. Playground Rejuvenation and Expansion: We propose removing aged equipment and adding 

new structures in the northwest segment of the playground. The usage of this area has been 

increasing year over year, making it an essential and safe play space for our children. 

2. Refresh of Sports Courts: We seek repairs, improvements to the Tennis, Basketball, and 

Pickleball courts to enhance recreational opportunities for our community. 

3. Horseshoe Pits: We request the placement of two loads of black dirt in the horseshoe pits area, 

along with leveling and seeding. 

4. Boat Launch Rejuvenation: We also propose upgrades to the approach and precast ramps of 

the boat launch, which may already be planned but not yet implemented. 

We have been in contact with several vendors and have gathered budgeting estimates for the 

playground equipment. Our goal is to complete an application for the Community Facility Enhancement 

Program (CFEP) by the end of 2024, in time for the January 10, 2025, application deadline. 

With grant approval, support from Smoky Lake County, community sponsorships, and in-kind 

contributions, we aim to see these projects developed by summer 2025. We anticipate the playground 

portion of the project may be in the range of $80,000. Additional costs will cover the removal and 

demolition of existing equipment, as well as the handling and installation of new materials. 

We appreciate your consideration of our request and are available to discuss any questions you may 

have regarding the allocation of funds or resources. We look forward to positive news, ideally by late 

October or early November. 

Thank you for your support. 

Best regards, 

Darrell Ewaskiw 

Bonne Lake Resort Community 

 

 

patti
Typewritten Text
#4.1



patti
Typewritten Text
#4.2





















































patti
Typewritten Text
#7.1



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.2







patti
Typewritten Text
#7.3

















patti
Typewritten Text
#7.4



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.5







patti
Typewritten Text
#7.6









patti
Typewritten Text
#7.7



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.8



























patti
Typewritten Text
#7.9































patti
Typewritten Text
#7.10





patti
Typewritten Text
#7.11



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.12



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 

September 20, 2024 to November 7, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

September 20, 2024 – Smoky Lake Foundation (Jered & Dominique) 
 Received updates from the Foundation CAO, financial reports, occupancy reports and committee 

working group reports, highlighting 51 suite condition assessments completed, elevator contract 
renewed, and IT systems stabilization upgrades. 

 
September 24, 2024 – Victoria Home Guard Tour of Victoria Trail (Jered, Dominique, Lorne, & Dan) 

 Toured the entire Trail from the Fort White Earth interpretive sign just east of the Victoria 
Settlement Historical Provincial Site to the Elbow interpretive sign just west of Highway 831, 
focusing on the general history of the area with stops along the way, including Ruthenia School, 
St. Elias Orthodox Church Pakan, House in the Middle of the Road, and Free Trader’s Cabin. 

 
September 26, 2024 – Regular Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Amended Policy Statement No. 62-21-07: Beaver Control on Private Lands. 
 Reviewed and left as is, Policy statement No. 03-35-14 Snow Clearing-Public and Private Services. 
 Approved to sell a 1500 Degelman Mower & 1820 Degelman Sidearm for $17,500 as is where is. 
 Acknowledged the approval of Smoky Lake Region’s “Community Designation”, effective, 

September 9, 2024, which will remain in place for 3 years for the purpose of attracting, recruiting 
and retaining newcomers (including foreign nationals) through the Rural Renewal Stream (RRS). 

 
October 1, 2024 – Special Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Received information in respect to Surface Material Lease Exploration, in Executive Session. 
 
October 1, 2024 – NAAGO 

 MLAs van Dijken, Cyr, Roswell, and Armstrong-Homeniuk, were in attendance along with Minister 
of Transportation and Economic Corridors who was virtually turned in.  

 Discussions included updates in respect to Hwy 28 engineering & budgeting, as well as an update 
from Vegreville about their discussions held with Minister of Health about advocating for the NE 
Health Zone, and Lac La Biche brought up the need to address rural crime concerns. 

 
October 3, 2024 – Agricultural Service Board (Dan & Jered) 

 Recommend County Policy Statement No. 62-05-06: ECO Grasshopper Bait Distributor, be 
updated with a relevant policy name and current practices and chemical resources. 

 Received an update from LARA. 
 Discussed the difficulties of moving farm equipment along County roads that are overgrown with 

overhanging trees and working with Public Works to address the issue. 
 Recommended advocating for sustainable multi-year funding toward Ag-Know, Alberta Farm 

Mental Health Network and also recommend the County provide funds towards the program. 
 
October 5, 2024 – Great White North Pumpkin Fair in Smoky Lake (Jered) 

 Brought greetings on behalf of the County at opening ceremonies. 
 
October 9, 2024 – Joint Health & Safety Committee (Jered &Dominique) 

 Received training updates, and Committee member reports. 
 Discussed the need for: First Aid & CPR training to be taken by staff & Council, two-way radios in 

all equipment, and wearing appropriate PPE. 

patti
Typewritten Text
#9.5



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 

September 20, 2024 to November 7, 2024 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 Received an extensive update from the new Safety Coordinator on her current and upcoming 
projects. 

 
October 10, 2024 – Regular Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Approved to provide $1,000 to the Alberta Invasive Species Council. 
 Acknowledged the “Waskatenau Creek restoration and trail concept” report, created through a 

grant funded study, managed by the Village of Waskatenau in partnership with the County. 
 Agreed to not sell certain County-owned lands at Ritchie Bros. Ltd. 
 Accepted several offers from adjacent landowners to purchase adjacent County-owned lands. 
 Denied consent to the Village of Waskatenau, to purchase lands located within the County, 

adjacent to the Village. 
 Approved $2,500 of FCSS funds towards the Smoky Lake Minor Hockey Association’s leaders in 

sport course. 
 Approved to write off one-time interest on the Smoky Lake Curling Club’s accounts receivable 

account. 
 Approved to write a letter advocating for a fairer distribution of charitable gaming revenues. 
 Approved to provide Notices of Intent to Designate to the owners of Bellis Store and Heritage 

Shoppe, White Earth Hall, and Samuel A. MacDonald Stopping House, General Store and Pine 
Creek Post Office. 

 Acknowledged and accepted the Year-2024 Minister’s Award for Municipal and Public Library 
Excellence, awarded to the County for the North Saskatchewan Canadian Heritage River Initiative. 

 Authorized Administration to transact the following purchase and approve an unbudgeted 
expense of $2,200,000 plus GST, to purchase two Surface Material Leases. 

 Directed Administration to seek a legal opinion pertaining to the MCC for Smoky Lake 
Development Corp., as discussed in-camera. 

 
October 18, 2024 – Smoky Lake Foundation (Jered & Dominique) 

 Received updates from the Foundation CAO, financial reports, occupancy reports and committee 
working group reports, highlighting 87.9% supportive living occupancy overall (with the 
availability in Vilna), the 2023 Financial Audit completed with an operating surplus of $72,128.84 
carryover for 2024. 

 
October 22, 2024 - Physicians & Health Care Professionals Committee (Jered & Linda) 

 Held the Organizational Meeting Amy Cherniwchan is Chairperson and Jered Serben is the Vice-
Chairperson. 

 Received a presentation from Robyn Laczy, Project Coordinator for the Primary Care Network 
North Zone regarding the Health Neighbourhood Project. 

 Acknowledged Dr. Esterhuizen’s Practicum has been completed. 
 Approved to provide $627.37 to the local Regional Police and Crisis Team (RPACT) for the Mental 

Health Conference on October 28 - 30, 2024. 
 
October 23, 2024 - Smoky Lake Region Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee (ICC) (All Council) 

 The meeting was held for the purpose of Smoky Lake Region Fire Rescue items, including 
proposed three-year budget for fire hall building rental expenses, insurance, and reviewing the 
master plan for 2024-2029. 



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 

September 20, 2024 to November 7, 2024 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

October 24, 2024 – Organizational Council Meeting (All Council) 

   



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 

September 20, 2024 to November 7, 2024 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

October 24, 2024 – Regular Council meeting (All Council) 
 Appointed County CAO Kevin Lucas as the Highway 28/63 Regional Water Service Commission 

Manager. 
 Approved to provide $2,000 to the AgKnow, Alberta Farm Mental Health Network. 
 Executed a "Right of Access & Consent to Transfer of Land for Compensation" agreement with a 

landowner to rectify a road encroachment at Township Road 602 and Range Road 132. 
 Directed Administration to bring 2-3 policies to every regular Council meeting for review. 
 Rescinded Policy Statement No. 02-20-02: Fire and Rescue Liaison Committee: Terms of 

Reference, to dissolve the committee. 
 Amended Policy Statement No. 61-06-02: Community Futures St. Paul-Smoky Lake Region Board 

Appointment: Terms of Reference, to remove requirement that the appointed member be the 
same as the RCDC member. 

 Approved to write a letter to RMA requesting advocacy for the Calgary’s rural casino model, to be 
used for the relocated Camrose Casino in Edmonton. 

 
October 29, 2024 – Budget Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Amended Policy Statement No. 08-18-10: Council Remuneration, to remove Councillor monthly 
divisional travel mileage allowance of $400 per month, and increased the mileage rate from $0.55 
to $0.68 for the first 5,000km and $0.64 for every kilometer over 5,000 in a year. 

 Administration presented the Draft 2025 Budget. 
 

October 30, 2024 – Special Council Meeting (All Council) 
 Held discussion in camera in respect to the MCC For Smoky Lake Development Corp., with the 

Town of Smoky Lake present. 
 The County agreed to provide notice to the MCC For Smoky Lake Development Corp. of the intent 

to remove financial support. 
 

November 4-7, 2024 – Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) Fall Convention (All Council) 
 Council attended a variety of plenary addresses and workshops, as well as the ministerial forum 

and resolutions session, in addition to the opposition party leader panel, and a tradeshow.  
 
November 4, 2024 – Private Meeting with Deputy Premier / Minister of Public Safety & Emergency 
Services (Jered & Dominique) 

 Advocated for the need for funding towards community safety & increased policing to 
mitigation rural crime and brought awareness to the increased armed / violent property crimes 
in Smoky Lake County. 

 
November 4, 2024 – Private Meeting with Minister of Municipal Affairs (Jered & Dominique) 

 Advocated for increased Local Government Fiscal Framework funding as well as the need to 
address the local government from burden oil/gas well and new drills tax holiday.  
 

November 5, 2024 – Private Meeting with Transportation and Ec. Corridors: Regional Director and 
Infrastructure Manager (All Council) 

 Advocated for the need to mitigate the hazardous, curved intersection at Hwy 28 & 855, possibly 
with a roundabout, and the need to improve Hwy 28 to meet its needs as a wide/heavy load 



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 

September 20, 2024 to November 7, 2024 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

corridor requirement with improved accesses/acceleration, deceleration lanes. Also requested 
better communication when is comes to current & future highway projects within Smoky Lake 
County’s boundaries. 

 
November 6, 2024 – Private Meeting with Minister of Justice (Jered & Dominique) 

 Advocated for the need for a plan to achieve safe communities and crime free communities, the 
need to stop continuation of repeat offenders, and the need to address the lack of consequences 
for charges laid – catch and release. 

 
 
For more information about County meetings, minutes, agendas, bylaws, policies, or departments, please 
visit:  www.smokylakecounty.ab.ca 



patti
Typewritten Text
#10.1



COMMITTEE Representative 2Alternate Other
1. Miranda

2. CAO
3. Kunyk

4. Thompson Miranda

5. Kunyk
6. Thompson
7. Kunyk CAO
8. Thompson

9. Kunyk

10. Full Council

11. Miranda CAO

12. Miranda Kunyk DEM: Paul Miranda

13. Thompson

14. Thompson
15. Miranda Carol Trider,Ad Hoc
16.

17. Municipal Planning Services

18. Thompson
19. Thompson
20. Kunyk
21. Miranda
22. Thompson

VILLAGE OF VILNA 

2024 - 2025  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATION
KUNYK, Leroy    (Mayor),  THOMPSON,   Tammy  (Dep. Mayor),   MIRANDA,   Paul  (Councillor)

Vilna & Dist. Fire Dept Voluntary Thompson

Vilna & District Ag. Society Voluntary

Vilna Pool Hall Society Voluntary/As requested

Subdivision Authority

Ukrainian Twinning Committee 1 Councillor Until Jan1/25 Only
Veterans Memorial Highway ( #36) 1 Councillor

Smoky Lake Foundation 4 year term  (1 yr) 1 Councillor, 1 Alternate Kunyk

St. Paul- Smoky Lake Community Futures 1 Council or Community
Subdivision & Development Appeal Brd 1 Councillor and 2 at lrg AS REQUIRED

Regional Community Development Committee 1 Councillor Kunyk

Regional Emergency Mgmt Advisory Committee 1 and 2 Alternates Thompson

Regional Fire & Rescue Services Committee 1 and 1 Alternate Miranda

North-East Muni-Corr Ltd. 1 and 1 Alternate Kunyk

Physicians and Health Care Professionals Committee 1 Councillor

Public Safety/Disaster Service/ Community Policing 
Committee Committee of the Whole

Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee 1 Councillor
NE Alberta HUB 1 Councillor Miranda

NLLS / Vilna & District Municipal Library 1 and 1 Alternate Thompson

Development Authority Officer
Evergreen Regional Waste Commission 1 and 1 Alternate Miranda

Highway 28/63 Water Commission (4 year term) 2 and 1 Alternate Kunyk

No. of Reps. Alternate
Capital Region Assessment Services  Commission 1 and 1 Alternate Thompson

patti
Typewritten Text
#10.2



Director of Emergency Management – Paul 
Miranda
St. Paul/Smoky Lake Community Futures – Carol 
Trider
Subdivision Authority – Municipal Planning 
Services

Ukrainian Twinning Committee
(until Jan 1/25)

Community Futures - St.Paul-Smoky Lk

Evergreen Regional Waste (Alt)

Highway 28/63 Water Commission (Alt 2)

NE Alberta HUB (Alt)

Public Safety/Disaster Svs/Policing

Regional Community Development

Regional Emergency Management

Regional Fire & Rescue (Alt)

Vilna & District Ag Society (volunteer)

Intermunicipal Collaboration 
Committee

NE MuniCorr (Alt)

Physicians and Health Care 
Professionals Committee

Public Safety/Disaster Svs/Policing

Regional Emergency Mgmt. (2 Alt)

Smoky Lake Foundation (Alternate)

Highway 28/63 Water Commission

NE Alberta HUB

NE MuniCorr

Northern Lights Library & Vilna 
Library

Public Safety/Disaster Svs/Policing

Regional Emergency Mgmt. (Alt)

Regional Fire & Rescue

Smoky Lake Foundation

Vilna Fire Department (volunteer) Veterans Memorial Highway

Vilna & District Fire Dept. 
(volunteer) (Alternate)

Vilna Pool Hall Society  (volunteer)

Regional Community Development 
(Alt)

Northern Lights Library & Vilna 
Library

Highway 28/63 Water Commission

Committees by Council Member Name

KUNYK THOMPSON MIRANDA Other

Evergreen Regional Waste Capital Region Assessment (Alt) Capital Region Assessment Services Development Authority Officer - CAO



 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
Address: 242006 Range Road 243, Wheatland County, AB T1P 2C4 Email: amber.link@wheatlandcounty.ca Phone: 403-934-8252 

www.wheatlandcounty.ca 
@WheatlandCounty 

 

Office of the Reeve 
November 1, 2024 

 

Rural Municipalities of Alberta Member Municipalities 

 

Subject: Collaborative Stance on FCM Conference Attendance – Invitation for Rural Municipalities to Join 

 

Dear Council Members, 

 

I am writing to you on behalf of Wheatland County to explain our Council’s decision regarding attendance at the 

upcoming Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) conference. After discussion and consideration, our Council has 

chosen not to participate in next year's FCM conference. 

 

Our decision stems from growing concerns about how well the FCM’s focus aligns with the unique needs and challenges 

of rural municipalities like ours. We believe the current structure and priorities of FCM do not provide sufficient 

opportunity to represent the distinct needs of rural communities. 

 

In light of this, we are reaching out to all members of the Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) to encourage the 

development of a unified stance on this matter. We want to explore the possibility of establishing a federal advocacy 

group or association that could more effectively amplify the voices of rural municipalities, ensuring our collective needs 

are represented with a stronger, more focused, and efficient voice. We will be bringing a resolution for consideration to 

the RMA Spring Convention 2025.  

 

To move forward, we call on colleagues across Canada to join us in sending a letter outlining your concerns to FCM.   

 

We plan to engage in further discussions with RMA and other stakeholders to explore how we can better address the 

diverse needs of Canadian rural municipalities. While we have decided not to attend next year’s conference, we remain 

committed to working toward collaborative solutions that benefit all communities. 

 

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and we look forward to your response and support. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Amber Link 

Reeve, Wheatland County 

On behalf of Wheatland County Council 

 

cc:  Federation of Canadian Municipalities 

 Wheatland County Council  

mailto:amber.link@wheatlandcounty.ca
http://www.wheatlandcounty.ca/
patti
Typewritten Text
#10.3



 
 

 
 

 
Address: 242006 Range Road 243, Wheatland County, AB T1P 2C4 Email: amber.link@wheatlandcounty.ca Phone: 403-934-8252 

www.wheatlandcounty.ca 
@WheatlandCounty 

 

 

Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities  

Association of Manitoba Municipalities 

 Rural Ontario Municipal Association 

 Union of British Columbia Municipalities 

 Fédération Québécoise des Municipalités 

 Nova Scotia Federation of Municipalities 

 Union of the Municipalities of New Brunswick 

 Federation of PEI Municipalities 

 Municipalities Newfoundland and Labrador 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:amber.link@wheatlandcounty.ca
http://www.wheatlandcounty.ca/


patti
Typewritten Text
#10.4



patti
Typewritten Text
#10.5





InformaƟon Released to Council 

 

Tracking Number & DescripƟon of InformaƟon Released: Date Released: 
Municipal 

File #: 
R133.24 - 2025 Fire Services Training Program Announcement Sept. 3, 2024 2-15 
R134.24 - 2023 Municipal Indicator - Response Sept. 4, 2024 1-203 
R135.24 - Town of SL September 2024 Community NewsleƩer.pdf Sept. 5, 2024 1-113 
R136.24 - HAK School NewsleƩer_Sept_24' Sept. 6, 2024 17-4 
R137.24 - FedGas Agenda Fall 2024 Sept. 3, 2024 9-22 
R138.24 - RMA Contact NewsleƩer Sept. 6, 2024 Sept. 6, 2024 See RMA Website 

R139-24 - RMA Contact NewsleƩer September 13, 2024 Sept. 13, 2024 See RMA Website 

R140-24 - LICA AGM Info & Annual Report Sept. 17, 2024 1-244 
R141-24 - RMA Contact NewsleƩer Sept. 20, 2024 Sept. 20, 2024 See RMA Website 

R142-24 – Managers Monthly Reports – Aug-Sept 2024 Sept. 23, 2024 N/A 
RMA Contact NewsleƩer Sept. 27, 2024 Sept. 27, 2024 See RMA Website 

Town of Smoky Lake NewsleƩers October 2024 Oct. 03, 2024 1-113 
Northeast Regional Connector NewsleƩer – Sept. 2024 Oct. 04, 2024 N/A 
RMA Contact NewsleƩer Oct. 04, 2024 Oct. 04, 2024 See RMA Website 

RMA Contact NewsleƩer Oct. 11, 2024 Oct. 11, 2024 See RMA Website 

RMA Contact NewsleƩer Oct. 21, 2024 Oct. 21, 2024 See RMA Website 

RMA Contact NewsleƩer Oct. 25, 2024 Oct. 25, 2024 See RMA Website 

Northeast Regional Connector NewsleƩer – Oct. 2024 Oct. 30, 2024 N/A 
Municipal Affairs NewsleƩer – October 2024 Oct. 31, 2024 1-203 
RMA Contact NewsleƩer Nov. 01, 2024 Nov. 01, 2024 See RMA Website 

R143-24 – Managers Monthly Reports – Sept-Oct 2024 Nov. 05, 2024 N/A 
Town of SL November 2024 Community NewsleƩer.pdf Nov. 05, 2024 1-113 
R144-24 – Managers Monthly Reports – Oct-Nov 2024 Nov. 08, 2024 N/A 

patti
Typewritten Text
#11.1



Municipality of SMOKY LAKE COUNTY

           CIBC
GENERAL GENERAL PAYROLL NOTICE SAVINGS
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ACCOUNT

NET BALANCE AT August 31, 2024 353,940.98 924,408.88 264,216.42 10,173,093.22 1,561,676.16
Receipts for the month of September

1,106.05 1093.97 42269.79 6,126.90
2,184,486.72

Utility 2,559.96 119,021.88
82,857.35

Town Gas/Fed Gas 42,144.10
GST refund 19,345.04
Gas Alberta Rebate 54,120.50
Development Permit 60,232.50

Total Receipts 3,666.01 2,562,208.09 1,093.97 42,269.79 6,126.90

SUB-TOTAL 357,606.99 3,486,616.97 265,310.39 10,215,363.01 1,567,803.06

LESS
Disbursements for the month of September
 Transfer funds to ATB Payroll -393,672.68 393,672.68

-688,276.10 -393,924.73
Transfer to other accounts
Bank Charges -13.00 -161.47

Total Disbursements -13.00 -1,082,110.25 -252.05 0.00 0.00

NET BALANCE AT September 30, 2024 357,593.99 2,404,506.72 265,058.34 10,215,363.01 1,567,803.06

357,188.80 2,485,554.66 265,058.34 10,215,363.01 1,567,803.06
405.19 25,547.50       

-106,595.44

NET BALANCE AT September 30, 2024 357,593.99 2,404,506.72 265,058.34 10,215,363.01 1,567,803.06

REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT
NET BALANCE AT August 31, 2024 0.00
Disbursements
Payments
NET BALANCE AT September 30, 2024 0.00

THIS STATEMENT SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL, 

Reeve Secretary-Treasurer

NET BALANCE AT September 30, 2024
Outstanding Deposits
Less Outstanding Cheques

ATB

Interest
Taxes & Penalties

Miscellaneous Services & Sales

Bills and Accounts

patti
Typewritten Text
#12.1



Taxes (net)

Legislative

Administration

Communications

GIS

Other Government Services
250.00 STARS hockey tourn 1,500.00 Ann Chorney Library annual donation

360,000.00 Aspen View 1,500.00 SL Public Library annual donation
200.00 Mighty Moose Endurance 500.00 SL Riding Club annual donation
500.00 Randy Russ Barrel Race 1,500.00 Vilna Library annual donation
500.00 Archery Tournament 6,000.00 Stars Annual Donation

1,000.00 Kalyna annual donation 3,000.00 Annual COPS Donation
1,500.00 Threshing bee annual donation 200.00 Robotics Tournament

500.00 HAK Girls Rugby 350.00 SL Holubka Dancers
500.00 UCC-AB Prov Council 1,000.00 Vilna Fair Days
500.00 Jr Golf 500.00 Waskatenau Fair Days

500.00 MS Society
1,000.00 Fireworks 250.00 Jasper

383,250.00

balance remaining 6,750.00

Fire Services

Bylaw

Transportation

Environmental Services

FCSS
1706 Wask Library 6500 SL Library

1875 Vilna Ag Society 2000

1500 Legion 1290

6500 Fire Camp 2500
Smoky Lake 
Minor Hockey

Aspenview FSLW

23,871.00$    grant remaining 506.00$            

Planning & Communication

Agriculture Service Board

Economic Development

Recreation & Cultural Services

Gas

Natural Gas Distribution expenses are at 79%

 Total Gas Rev  Purchase  Capital  Gross Marg Profit Marg
2024 1,050,829.91$                                587,847.52-$              89,698.29-$             375,308.10$             64%

2023 1,863,967.45$                                1,275,933.53-$           118,689.19-$           469,344.73$             37%

2022 3,224,440.00$                                2,692,763.00-$           144,974.00-$           386,703.00$             14%

2021 2,703,448.00$                                1,942,250.00-$           147,212.00-$           613,986.00$             32%

2020 1,975,881.00$                                1,261,073.00-$           149,802.00-$           565,006.00$             45%

2019 1,938,495.00$                                1,202,745.00-$           148,785.00-$           586,965.00$             49%

Accounts Receivable
Total Current Over 30 days

Old Receivables 
under review

93,488.23$                           45,208.84$          $        1,551.37  $        46,728.02 

Taxes Receivable
Total 2024 o/s

Arrears prior to 
2023

Allowance for 
write off

Percentage of 2024 taxes collected: 94% 3,426,303.30$                      768,165.92$        $ 2,658,137.38  $   2,202,904.40 

Natural Gas Receivable Total Current Over 90 days
-$29,302.48 -$50,231.16  $      86,107.29 

Warspite Water Receivable Total Current Over 90 days
4,581.87$                             3,082.52$            $        1,542.81 

Communications has spent 76% of the budget.  It should end very close to budget.

Planning has spent 44%.  This is low due to a vacant posiiton in the dept and will provide a surplus

ASB has spent 81%.  The Assistant AG Fieldman position is vacant and will provide a savings for 2024

Budget to Actual 2024
Notes As At November 6, 2024

Taxes have been levied ($13,601,369 including requisitions).  Some 305.1 assessment changes to linear have decreased the total 
revenue back down almost to budget.  Most of the penalties levied are uncollectable.

We have completed 83% of the year.   Council has spent 80% of the budget.  Some Councillor expenses are likely to end up over 
budget and some under budget.  Overall, the department should end very close to budget.

Administration has spent 71% of the operating budget.  Other Services will be over budget by $60,000 - 70,000.  These are the 
unbudgetet fees to sell three properties as well as the consultant for CAO replacement.  The CLH fees will be offset by the land sales 
revenue.  Salaries and wages may be overbudget , but savings in other areas should keep the department on track.  Interest revenue  
will provide aproximately $100,000 more than budgeteted

GIS has spent 82% of the budget.  The annual  computer licensing have been paid.  It should end slightly under budget

The budget for grants is $31,000 plus $360,000 for HAK

Fire has spent 86% of the budget. Costs are high this year because tools etc. that were stolen from Vilna fire department have been 
replaced.  Advertising is over budget due to OHV ban signs. Some costs are only billed at year end therefore it is difficult to predict 
the final cost for this department.  It should end up close to budget.

Bylaw has spent 70 % of the budget.  There will be savings due to the position vacancy.

Public works has spent 80% of the budget. Thus far, we predict the department to end the year very close to budget

Water has spent 81% of the budget.  Sewer 82%.  Bellis Sewer has cost $12,334 to date which is $10,334 over budget.  An 
unexpected repair was necessary.  Landfill  has spent 91% of the budget.  Garbage truck repairs have resulted in higher parts costs 
as well as the costs to contract out garbage pick up.  Water and Sewer should finish the year close to budget.  Landfill may be 
slightly over budget.

2024 FCSS funds granted out are:

Warspite Community Hall

Friends of Vilan Pool Hall

The odorant has a profit is $104,286

The CNG program has been cancelled

RDCD did not provide a budget for approval. Expenditures to date are $13,762.  Dr Recruitement/Retention costs are $14,640

Parks and Rec has spent 70% of the budget.  We expect to see a savings

Natural Gas Administration has spent 73% of the budget

Gross Margin to June 30 is $348,218

Due to the budget plan, gas is 
currently overpaid

patti
Typewritten Text
#12.2



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 10 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes

Farmland & Residential $4,293,462 $4,300,093 $6,631 0.15%
Machinery & Equipment 1,357,698 1,357,698 0 (0.00%)
Non - Residential 1,381,168 1,318,187 -62,981 (4.78%)
Linear 6,445,140 6,435,843 -9,297 (0.14%)
Provincial Government 12,479 72,831 60,352 82.87%
Sewer Levy 9,625 9,040 -585 (6.47%)

Other Income
Well Drilling/Drill Rigs 943 5,500 4,557 82.85%

Penalties 404,482 85,200 -319,282 (374.74%)

majority of penalties 
from defunct oil and 
gas- not collectable

User Fees and Sales of Goods 549,376 641,950 92,574 14.42%
Investment Income 679,652 693,498 13,846 2.00%
Development Levies 138,391 69,000 -69,391 (100.57%)
Licenses and Permits 228,682 224,500 -4,182 (1.86%) Aggregate fees

Sales to Other Governments 199,255 336,135 136,880 40.72%
Grants

Provincial Conditional - Operating 784,388 609,753 -174,635 (28.64%)
CLC 134,478 113,230 -21,248 (18.77%)

Transfer from Operating Reserve 1,035,000 1,035,000 0.00%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 17,654,219 17,307,458 -346,761 (2.00%)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages 5,179,075 5,822,998 643,923 11.06%
Benefits 479,008 1,243,983 764,975 61.49%
WCB 47,699 85,000 37,301 43.88%
Other Wages 1,250 10,000 8,750 87.50%

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 18,208 45,700 27,492 60.16%
Meals and Lodgings 43,723 95,360 51,637 54.15%
Membership & Conference Fees 47,481 60,435 12,954 21.43%
Freight, Express, Postage 25,162 42,250 17,088 40.45%
Telephone & Communication 58,470 98,150 39,680 40.43%
Training 66,934 112,700 45,766 40.61%
Advertising, Printing, Subscriptions 39,691 60,550 20,859 34.45%
Accounting & Auditing 33,500 34,000 500 1.47%
Legal Fees 9,186 40,000 30,814 77.03%
Assessor Fees 123,702 146,000 22,298 15.27%

Engineering Fees 216,311 133,670 -82,641 (61.82%)

Includes Engineering 
fees for bridges which 
will be capitalized

Other Consulting 59,789 62,700 2,911 4.64%
Includes fees to 
auction land

Computer Programing 124,947 187,417 62,470 33.33%
Insurance 139,166 271,261 132,095 48.70%
Other Services 933,663 1,648,358 714,695 43.36%

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 73,746 95,830 22,084 23.04%
Fuel/Parts/ Etc 91,958 -71,846 -1,244,512 1732.19%

Offset to road plan -1,618,946 -1,618,946 0 0.00%
fuel & equip costs 
allocted to road proj

Gravel 490,000 -48,238 (9.84%)
Chemicals 76,002 40,000 -36,002 (90.00%) weed control

Taxes levied = 
$13,489,947 (budget 
$13,484,652)

Payroll costs variance 
20%

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Municiipal 

Budget to Actual Report



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 10 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

Computer Supplies 22,803 69,148 46,345 67.02%
Utilities 137,761 220,999 83,238 37.66%
Employee Recognition 5,872 30,000 24,128 80.43%
Other General Supplies 821,821 819,800 -2,021 (0.25%)

Transfers to Local Boards & Agencies 575,232 678,794 103,562 15.26%
includes transfer to 
Aspen View

Write Offs 1,587 3,000 1,413 47.10%
Bank Charges & Interest 4,754 6,100 1,346 22.07%
Requisitions 2,629,350 2,583,857 -45,493 (1.76%)
Contingency 13,749 13,749 100.00%
Amortization 2,044,300 2,044,300 100.00%

10,468,905 15,605,317 3,517,466 20.42%
Total Operations 7,185,314 1,702,141 -3,864,227 (4644.79%)

Capital Funding
Sale of Capital Assets 1,048,239 1,306,699 258,460 19.78% land sales
Provinical Capital Grants 646,464 4,074,411 3,427,947 84.13%
Transfer from Reserve 1,431,717 1,431,717 100.00%

Capital Funding 1,694,703 6,812,827 5,118,124 75.12%
Capital Expenses

Buildings & Land 31 14,000 13,969 99.78%
Transfer to Reserve 820,000 1,428,000 608,000 42.58% land sales
Land Improvements 2,202,730 18,000 -2,184,730 (12137.39%)
Engineering Structures 6,011,475 6,011,475 100.00%
Equipment 833,598 874,427 40,829 4.67%
Vehicles 243,573 594,419 350,846 59.02%

4,099,932 8,940,321 4,840,389 54.14%
Total Capital -2,405,229 -2,127,494 277,736 (13.05%)

Net Profit/Loss 4,780,085 -425,353 -3,586,491 175.44%

Remove Amortization 2,044,300 2,044,300 100.00%
Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) 4,780,085 1,618,947 -1,542,191



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 10 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes
Other Income
Grants

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages $302,524 $362,792 $60,268 16.61%
Benefits 67,098 77,105 10,007 12.98%

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 13,251 28,200 14,949 53.01%
Meals and Lodgings 14,047 23,770 9,723 40.91%
Membership & Conference Fees 12,979 15,185 2,206 14.53%
Telephone & Communication 4,580 6,100 1,520 24.92%
Other Services 1,500 1,500 100.00%

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 142 3,000 2,858 95.27%
Computer Supplies 27 3,000 2,973 99.10%

414,648 520,652 106,005 20.36%

Total Operations -414,648 -520,652 -106,005 20.36%

Capital Funding

Capital Expenses

Net Profit/Loss -414,648 -520,652 -106,005 20.36%

Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) -414,648 -520,652 -106,005 20.36%

Expense Breakdown by Division
1 -$8,267 -$12,985 -$4,719
2 -$14,967 -$14,600 $367
3 -$8,979 -$19,700 -$10,721
4 -$8,979 -$19,700 -$10,721
5 -$7,662 -$13,585 -$5,923

-$48,854 -$80,570 -$31,717

Some  councillors 
will likely end up 
over budget after 
attending fall 
conferences

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Council 

Budget to Actual Report



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 12 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes
Other Income

Penalties $18,331 $10,000 ($8,331) (83.31%)
User Fees and Sales of Goods 1,706,232 2,970,620 1,264,388 42.56% mild weather = low sales

Investment Income 35,000 35,000 100.00%
Interest will be allocated 
from municipal at year end

Licenses and Permits 9,600 9,600 100.00%
Grants
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 1,724,563 3,025,220 1,300,658 42.99%

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages 720,360 889,889 169,529 19.05%
Benefits 148,830 144,020 -4,810 (3.34%)

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 3,000 3,000 100.00%
Meals and Lodgings 7,916 18,500 10,584 57.21%
Membership & Conference Fees 9,070 38,000 28,930 76.13%
Freight, Express, Postage 8,046 12,600 4,554 36.15%
Telephone & Communication 12,499 20,400 7,901 38.73%
Training 846 7,000 6,154 87.92%
Advertising, Printing, Subscriptions 20 2,500 2,480 99.20%
Accounting & Auditing 13,150 16,000 2,850 17.81%
Legal Fees 1,000 1,000 100.00%
Engineering Fees 8,312 7,500 -812 (10.82%)
Other Consulting 465 1,200 735 61.24%
Computer Programing 18,656 30,000 11,344 37.81%
Insurance 21,474 35,000 13,526 38.65%
Other Services 48,678 51,750 3,072 5.94%

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 5,751 18,200 12,449 68.40%
Fuel/Parts/ Etc 74,949 95,500 20,551 21.52%
Computer Supplies 226 19,000 18,774 98.81%
Utilities 9,009 12,120 3,111 25.67%
Employee Recognition 2,000 2,000 100.00%

Other General Supplies 665,124 1,550,042 884,918 57.09%
Includes purchase of 
natural gas

Amortization 245,000 245,000 100.00%
1,773,381 3,220,221 1,446,840 44.93%

Total Operations -48,818 -195,001 -146,183 74.97%

Capital Funding
Transfer from Reserve 267,000 267,000 100.00%

Capital Funding 267,000 267,000 100.00%
Capital Expenses

Buildings & Land 140,000 140,000 100.00%
Transfer to Reserve 50,000 50,000 100.00%
Equipment 14,118 60,000 45,882 76.47%
Vehicles 1,033 67,000 65,967 98.46%

15,151 317,000 301,850 95.22%
Total Capital -15,151 -50,000 -34,850 69.70%

Net Profit/Loss -63,969 -245,001 -181,033 73.89%

Remove Amortization 245,000 245,000 100.00%
Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) -63,969 -1 63,967 #########

2024-11-06 &P of &N 
9:54 AM 

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Natural Gas 

Budget to Actual Report



Dept BUDGET ACTIAL Notes
ADM AGGREGATE LICENSE REV TO RESERVE 200,000                  from aggregate license

LAND SALES 701,000-                  820,000-                  ( budget = cash reveune)

TRANSFER LAND SALES TO RESERVE 820,000                  
ADM Admin Total 501,000-                  -                               
Bylaw LIDAR GUN 7,000                      
Bylaw Bylaw Total 7,000                      -                               
FIRE MSA 6000 PLUS TIC WITH TRUCK MOUNT 14,435                    14,135                    Town to pay 40%

FIRE AFRRCS RADIO REPLACEMENT 18,500                    8,313                      
Insurance to cover 
10,500

FIRE NEW AFRRCS RADIOS 10,500                    10,165                    Town to pay 40%

FIRE Fire Total 43,435                    32,613                    
PW GRADER RESERVE 500,000                  order in 2025

PW 2022 GRADER ORDERED 659,000                  659,000                  
carried over from prev 
year

PW  PICK UP TRUCK PROGRAM 335,476                  

PW ENTERPRISE 3500 TRUCK PROGRAM 251,943                  
PW NEW SANDER FOR UNIT 435 13,992                    12,574                    
PW GRAVEL SALES TO RESERVE 27,000                    
PW PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 1,787,411               911,209                  
E & P SPEDDEN DISTRIBUTION PUMP 6,000                      
E & P SPEDDEN LANDFILL MONITORING WELLS 9,000                      
E & P SL LANDFILL MONITORING WELLS 5,000                      
E & P LAKE BOAT LAUNCH REHAB 8,000                      7,830                      
E & P MOWER X 2 32,000                    
E & P Motion 491-24 Water Storage 28,000                    27,400                    
E & P ENV & PARKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 88,000                    35,230                    
PLN HISTORIC DESIGNATION PLAQUE 10,000                    
PLN PLANNING TOTAL 10,000                    -                               

AG REPLACE FLEX ARM & MOWER 473/474 92,000                    92,000                    
sell old for 30,000 / 
50,000 from reserve

PW AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT TOTAL 92,000                    92,000                    

MUNICIPAL TOTAL 1,526,846       1,071,052       
GAS Infrastructure Line Replacement 50,000                    
GAS METER READING EQUIPMENT 36,000                    
GAS RMO REPLACEMENT 140,000                  
GAS RMO MODEM REPLACEMENT 16,000                    14,118                    
GAS TRUCK 60,000                    
GAS GPS Unit to Track lines 8,000                      
GAS REFURBISH TRUCK BOX (UNIT 202) 7,000                      

NATURAL GAS TOTAL 317,000          14,118            

Smoky Lake County
2024 Capital Budget

239,635                  

This is an Enterprise 
Leasing error.  We will 
received $590,000 plus 
interest back



patti
Typewritten Text

patti
Typewritten Text
#12.3


	2.0 - Agenda November 14, 2024
	3.1 - Minutes Regular Meeting October 10, 2024
	4.1 - BLC to Smoky Lake County 10-21-24
	4.2 - Village of Waskatenau Information for Smoky Lake County Meeting November 14, 2024
	7.1 - RFD - Remembrance Day
	7.2 - RFD - Backsloping Applications
	7.3 - RFD - Policy Statement No. 09-39-13 Dust Control
	7.4 - RFD - ISDAB Appointment Removal
	7.5 - RFD - Policy Statement No. 01-22-01 Policy Committee Terms of Reference
	7.6 - RFD - Policy Statement No. 08-13-01 Disposal of Assets
	7.7 - RFD - Remuneration for Public-at-large
	7.8 - RFD - Renew ARB Services Contract
	7.9 - RFD - Bylaw 1464-24 - Non-Residential Tax Incentive
	7.10 - RFD - Returning Officer Contract Position
	7.11 - RFD - RMRF Municipal Law Seminar
	7.12 - RFD - Rec Area Facility Supervision & Cleaning Services RFP
	9.5 - Councillor Division Five & Reeve’s Report
	10.1 - Correspondence - Village of Waskatenau Board Appointments
	10.2 - Correspondence - VILNA 2024-25 Council Committee Appointments
	10.3 - Wheatland County - Collaborative Stance on FCM Conference Attendance
	10.4 - RCMP Ride-Along Invitation.
	10.5 -  Letter from Minister of Transportaion & Ec. Corridors - Hwy Vegetation
	11.1 - Information Released
	12.1 - Financial Statement - Septemebr 2024
	12.2 - Budgte to Actual Report
	Summary.pdf
	1.pdf
	11.pdf
	5.pdf
	capital.pdf

	12.3 - Bills & Accounts



